
 
 
 
 
A Meeting of an INDIVIDUAL EXECUTIVE MEMBER 
DECISION will be held at the Civic Offices, Shute End, 
Wokingham on  
MONDAY 15 FEBRUARY 2016 AT 4.00 PM 
 
 
 

 
Andy Couldrick 
Chief Executive 
Published on 5 February 2016 
 
 
 
 
This meeting will be filmed for inclusion on the Council’s 
website. 

 
Please note that other people may film, record, tweet or blog 
from this meeting.  The use of these images or recordings is 
not under the Council’s control.

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

Our Priorities 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

The Underpinning Principles 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Our Vision 
A great place to live, an even better place to do business 

Improve educational attainment and focus on every child 

achieving their potential 

Invest in regenerating towns and villages, support social 
and economic prosperity, whilst encouraging business 

growth 

Ensure strong sustainable communities that are vibrant and 

supported by well designed development 

Tackle traffic congestion in specific areas of the Borough 

Improve the customer experience when accessing Council 
services 

Offer excellent value for your Council Tax 

Provide affordable homes 

Look after the vulnerable 

Improve health, wellbeing and quality of life 

Maintain and improve the waste collection, recycling and 

fuel efficiency 

Deliver quality in all that we do 



 

 

For consideration by 
 
Angus Ross, Executive Member for Environment 
 
Officers Present 
Francesca Hobson, Highways and Transport 
Colm Ó Caomhánaigh, Democratic Services 
 
 
 
 
 

IMD NO. 
2016 

WARD SUBJECT 

    
IMD7   None Specific AMENDED SECTION 19 FLOOD 

INVESTIGATIONS POLICY 
To approve minor changes to WBC Flood 
Investigations Policy. 

5 - 10 

 
 
 

CONTACT OFFICER 
Colm Ó Caomhánaigh Democratic Services Officer 
Tel 0118 974 6059 
Email colm.ocaomhanaigh@wokingham.gov.uk 
Postal Address Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham, RG40 1BN 



This page is intentionally left blank



INDIVIDUAL EXECUTIVE MEMBER DECISION 
REFERENCE IMD: 2016 / 7 

 
TITLE Amended Section 19 Flood Investigations Policy 
  
DECISION TO BE MADE BY Angus Ross, Executive Member for Environment 
  
DATE AND TIME Monday 15 February 2016 at 4pm 
  
WARD None specific 
  
DIRECTOR Heather Thwaites, Director of Environment 
  
REPORT TO BE PUBLISHED ON Friday 5 February 2016 
  
VENUE Room FF12, Civic Offices, Shute End 
 

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY 
 
To approve the amended version of the existing flood investigations policy in order to 
provide clear guidance to residents when an investigation of a flooding incident will be 
investigated by Wokingham Borough Council (WBC) under Section 19 of the Flood and 
Water Management Act (FWMA) 2010.  
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Executive Member for Environment approves the amendments made to this policy. 
 

SUMMARY OF REPORT 
 
The report notes the amendments made to the original Wokingham Flood Investigation 
Policy. The Flood Investigation Policy sets the threshold at which a formal investigation 
of a flooding incident is undertaken by Wokingham Borough Council (WBC) as Lead 
Local Flood Authority (LLFA) under Section 19 of the Flood & Water Management Act 
(FWMA) 2010. The amendments include a section outlining the procedure for officers to 
follow once a flooding incident has been reported to the council and information on the 
timescales of a flood investigation.  
 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item IMD7



Background 
 
Under Section 19 of the Flood and Water Management Act 2010, Wokingham Borough 
Council (WBC) as the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA), has a duty to investigate 
certain incidents of flooding, to the extent that it considers necessary or appropriate. 
 
Consequently, WBC has scope to define a threshold or criteria that will determine 
whether or not a formal investigation of a flood is required. On 5th February 2013, a 
Flood Investigation Policy specific to Wokingham was agreed via an IEMD by Councillor 
Angus Ross, Executive Member for Environment. 
 
Following the 2013/2014 floods in Wokingham and the subsequent formal flood 
investigations that were completed for the parishes of Wargrave, Hurst, Swallowfield, 
Shinfield, Charvil, and Arborfield, officers believe that it would be beneficial for the 
WBCs Flood Investigation Policy to outline a procedure to be followed once WBC 
becomes aware of a flooding incident within the borough. For this reason, officers have 
amended the Flood Investigation Policy by adding in sections 4, regarding a procedure 
to follow, and 7, regarding timescales, to the original policy. The amended policy is 
attached. These amendments will help officers and consultants, during future flooding 
incidents, to conduct formal flood investigations more efficiently. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION 
 

 How much will it 
Cost/ (Save) 

Is there sufficient 
funding – if not 
quantify the Shortfall  

Revenue or 
Capital? 

Current Financial 
Year (Year 1) 

£0 £0 Revenue 

Next Financial Year 
(Year 2) 

£0 £0 Revenue 

Following Financial 
Year (Year 3) 

£0 £0 Revenue 

 

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision 

None 

 

Cross-Council Implications 

None 

 

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATION RESPONSES 

Director – Finance and Resources No response 

Monitoring Officer No response 

Leader of the Council “I welcome this refinement following recent 
experience of flood investigations. As that 
experience grows it is vital that the 
processes associated with floods are 
continually reviewed and if necessary 
amended.” 

 
 
 

Page 6



List of Background Papers 

The Flood and Water Management Act 2010 
Wokingham Borough Council’s amended Flood Investigations Policy (attached on next 
page) 
Wokingham Borough Council’s original Flood Investigation Policy agreed on 5th 
February 2013 

 

Contact Francesca Hobson Service  Highways and Transport 

Telephone No  0118 974 6569 Email 
Francesca.hobson@wokingham.gov.uk  

Date  4 February 2016 Version No.  1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7

mailto:Francesca.hobson@wokingham.gov.uk


Wokingham Borough Council 
 
Flood and Water Management Act 2010 - Section 19 “Duty to Investigate” 
Flooding Incidents Policy 
 
1. Background 

 
1.1. The Flood and Water Management Act (FWMA) 2010 places a duty on the 

Council, as the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) for its area, to investigate 
flooding incidents that it becomes aware of, to the extent that it considers 
necessary or appropriate. 

 
1.2. Section 19 of the Act 2010 states: 
 

“Local authorities: investigations 
 
(1)On becoming aware of a flood in its area, a Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) must, 
to the extent that it considers it necessary or appropriate, investigate— 
 

(a) which risk management authorities have relevant flood risk management 
functions, and 
(b) whether each of those risk management authorities has exercised, or is 
proposing to exercise, those functions in response to the flood. 
 

(2)Where an authority carries out an investigation under subsection (1) it must— 
 

(a) publish the results of its investigation, and 
(b) notify any relevant Risk Management Authorities (RMA).” 

 
1.3. As a result, LLFA’s have scope to define a threshold or criteria that will determine 

whether or not a formal investigation of a flood is required. 
 
1.4. This policy has been developed to enable Wokingham Borough Council (WBC) 

to plan resources effectively and to ensure members of the public are aware of 
the support they can expect when they are affected by a flood incident.  

 
2. Threshold for Investigation 
 
2.1. WBC will investigate all flooding incidents reported by residents, or that otherwise 

come to its attention, that involve  
 

 Internal flooding of habitable property (excluding garages and out 
buildings) 

 Flooding of any road that requires formal closure of that road and 
diversion of traffic 

 Flooding of critical infrastructure (such as electricity sub stations, sewage 
pumping stations or schools) that results in loss of service to customers or 
potential loss of service 

 
2.2. Whilst accepting that a flood event must be seen as “significant” both by the 

Authority and the community affected, to set the threshold too high would simply 
be seen as a method of avoiding the responsibility of carrying out investigations. 

Page 8



Setting the threshold too low could well lead to a burden that the Authority and 
other Risk Management Authorities could not meet. 
 

2.3. WBC may also investigate smaller “near miss” flooding incidents. 
 

2.4. WBC, as Highway Authority, will also continue to investigate smaller scale 
flooding and “ponding” on the highway. 

 
3. Purpose and Scale of Investigations 
 
3.1. Any investigations undertaken will seek to establish the likely causes of the 

flooding incident, the relevant risk management authorities, and any actions 
undertaken or proposed by the relevant Risk Management Authorities. 

 
3.2. Investigations will be undertaken during, or as soon as possible after, the 

flooding incident, and will be appropriate to the scale and nature of the flooding 
incident. 

 
3.3. Small scale flooding incidents, and incidents where the relevant risk 

management authorities are immediately apparent or are undertaking actions to 
alleviate the cause of the flooding incident, are likely to require limited 
investigations. 

 
3.4. Large scale flooding incidents, incidents where the relevant flood risk 

management authorities are unclear, and incidents where a number of risk 
management authorities are involved, are likely to require more detailed 
investigations. In such circumstances the Council will work closely with the risk 
management authorities involved and may, where appropriate, prepare a 
detailed report. 

 
4. Flood Investigation Procedure 
 
4.1. Flood reported to the LLFA; 

 
4.2. Flooding log started; 
 
4.3. Flood investigator appointed; 
 
4.4. Initial LLFA assessment undertaken as to whether this constitutes a section 19 

report; 
 
4.5. If yes, formal notification issued to partner risk management authorities notifying 

of the investigation and requesting any relevant information; 
 
4.6. Flood investigation undertaken and report drafted in consultation with partner 

Risk Management Authorities; 
 

4.7. Draft report issued for comment; 
 

4.8. Report and associated recommendations approved by the Councillor for 
Environment; 

 

Page 9



4.9. Finalised report to be published on the Council’s internet page as below; 
 
4.10. Where a number of flood investigations are needed simultaneously, 

investigations will be prioritised by the Flooding and Drainage team in 
consultation with the Executive Councillor. 

 
5. Publication of Findings of Investigations 
 
5.1. Following a Section 19 investigation WBC is required (under the FWMA) to 

produce a report, notify any relevant risk management authorities, and publish 
the results of the investigation. Wokingham Borough Council will use the 
Flooding webpage on the WBC webpage to publish Section 19 reports.  

 
6. Risk management authorities 
 
6.1. The principal risk management authorities are:  
 
The Environment Agency 

The Environment Agency has a strategic overview for all forms of flooding at national 
level and is responsible for managing the risk of flooding from main rivers and regulating 
reservoirs.  The Agency has a duty to contribute to sustainable development when 
delivering its statutory functions. 

Thames Water/South East Water 

Water and Sewerage Companies manage the supply and quality of drinking water, as 
well as the disposal and treatment of sewage and, in urban areas, the disposal of 
surface water runoff from properties. 

The Council (as Lead Local Flood Authority) 
 

Wokingham Borough Council as Lead local flood authority is responsible for local 
sources of flood risk, in particular surface runoff, groundwater and ordinary 
watercourses. 
 
The Council (as Highway Authority) 
 
Wokingham Borough Council as Highway Authority is responsible for drainage on 
adopted roads. 
 
7. Timescales 

 
7.1. The length of time a flood investigation takes will relate directly to the   

complexity and scale of the flood. It is not possible to set out a generic timeframe 
in which the flood investigation will be complete. However, it should be 
commenced as soon as possible after WBC becomes aware of the flood and 
updates should be provided as to which floods have been reported and the 
estimated timeframe for the initiation, and where possible, expected completion 
date of the flood investigation. 

 

Page 10


	Agenda
	IMD7 Amended Section 19 Flood Investigations Policy

